ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE LABOR & COMVERCE COWM TTEE
February 20, 2001
1:30 p. m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or Randy Phillips, Chair
Senat or Al an Aust er man
Senator Loren Leman

Senat or John Tor ger son
Senator Bettye Davis

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al Menbers Present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO. 66

"An Act relating to the authorizations for state financial
institutions; relating to confidential financial records of
depositors and customers of certain financial institutions;
relating to the Al aska Banking Code, Mitual Savings Bank Act,
Al aska Smal | Loans Act, and Al aska Credit Union Act; and providing
for an effective date."

HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON
SB 66 - No previous action to consider.
W TNESS REG STER

M. Terry Elder, Drector

Di vi sion of Banking, Securities, and Corporations
Depart ment of Comrerce and Community Devel opnent
P. O Box 110807

Juneau AK 99811-0807

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Commented on SB 66.

M. Terry Lutz, Supervisor

Banki ng Section

Di vi sion of Banking, Securities and Corporations
Depart ment of Commrerce and Conmmunity Devel opnent
P. 0. Box 110807

SENATE L& C COWM TTEE -1- February 20, 2001



Juneau AK 99811
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Conmmented on SB 66.

Ms. Lisa Bell, Sr. Vice President

Chi ef Operating O ficer of Al aska Pacific Bank
Al aska Bankers Associ ation

9359 Turn St.

Juneau AK 99801

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Comment ed on SB 66.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 01-6, SIDE A
Nunber 001
#SB66
SB 66- FI NANCI AL | NSTI TUTI ONS

CHAI RVAN RANDY PHILLIPS called the Senate Labor & Comerce
Comm ttee neeting to order at 1:30 p.m and announced SB 66 to be
up for consideration. He announced that he intended to hold the
bill and discuss various anendnents. He said there were four
anendnents from the DCEC and letters of support. There was a $0
fiscal note.

MR. TERRY ELDER, Director, Division of Banking, Securities, and
Corporations, said that SB 66 has a couple of objectives. One is to
remove the differences in current statutes fromstate and federal
| aw as provided under G anm Leach-Bliley Act. This is a federal |aw
that was enacted to allow banks, insurance conpanies, and
securities firns to conbine in offering financial services. There
are prohibitions in the banking code and certain insurance
activities that need to be deleted. The federal |aw al so creates a
new type of hol ding conpany called a "financial holding conpany”
which is provided for in this bill

MR. ELDER expl ai ned anot her inportant objective is to renove any
unnecessary burdens on the industry like the requirenent for
interstate national banks to get a permt from the Division to
branch into the state. This isn't necessary since they don't have
the authority to exam ne those national banks. This bill sinply
requires a notice.

Automated teller machines are also addressed. Under current
statute, the Departnent has to approve those and they propose to
change that to a notice, also.

A few sections were inserted to correct sonme problens with state
chartered financial institutions.

SENATE L& C COWM TTEE - 2- February 20, 2001



He highlighted section 3, page 2, privacy of the financial
institution's records (wth a letter of proposed anendnents).
Currently, the banking code has a privacy requirenent saying that
custoner information may not be disclosed w thout perm ssion of the
customer. Gramm Leach-Bliley is nore broad than that. Institutions
are allowed to share non-public information with affiliates and to
share them with non-affiliated third parties unless the custoner
opts out. However, they are not proposing to do that in A aska, but
to keep the law as it is. Qur |law has an opt in provision rather
than opt out. The difference is that a custonmer actually has to
agree to it; the opt provision neans that an institution is able to
di scl ose personal information unless they get specific denial of
that request fromthe custoner

Anot her issue in section 11, page 8, renoves the 17 percent cap on
credit cards issued by state banks. This is for a nunber of
reasons: first the credit cards available in Al aska from nationa
banks and ot her banks that operate in other states can be offered
to Al askans at any rate, not subject to the 17 percent cap. The
fact is that the only thing the 17 percent cap does is prohibit
Al aska state banks from conpeting in the credit card market. It
doesn't affect the interest rates on credit cards that people
already have. It's a very conpetitive nmarket and the rates are best
governed in the market and not by statute.

SENATOR LEMAN said that interest rates in excess of 17 percent
don't indicate to himthat the forces of conpetition have really
driven them down to where the consunmer benefits. He asked if the
reason the rates are high is that so many of the cards are offered
and the people who are picking themup shouldn't be issued credit
cards.

MR ELDER answered that he couldn't give hima definitive statenent
about why interest rates are as high as they are, but what he
points out is true.

SENATOR LEMAN said that he gets about three to five credit card
of fers per week.

Number 700

MR. ELDER said that Section 20 is the ATM section on page 11 which
changes current law from requiring approval for placing ATMs to
requiring a notice. Sections 26 - 38 cover pages 12 - 16 and deal
with branching into the state and this doesn't change any
requi renents except under current |aw the Division issues pernmts
to national banks that want to branch into the state. It doesn't

SENATE L& C COWM TTEE - 3- February 20, 2001



make any sense, because the Division of Banking can't exam ne a
nat i onal bank

Pages 20 - 24 deal with nutual savings banks and credit unions and
t hose changes put the trustees of nutual savings banks on the sane
basis and treat credit unions the sanme as banks in terns of charge
cards and ATMs.

Number 1000

SENATOR TORGERSON asked if he had net with the banking community on
this.

MR. ELDER said they net early on with the state banks and credit
unions. W net recently with nenbers of the Bankers Associ ation.

SENATOR TORGERSON noted there were a few anendnents from that
neeting and asked if those would bring themin agreenment with the
bill.

MR. ELDER replied that it brought theminto conformty with the
neeting they had. Based on the neeting, the Banks are still | ooking
at provisions and they may or may not have ot her wordi ng changes.
He personally didn't believe there wuld be significant
di sagreenents wth the potential exception of the privacy
provi si on.

SENATOR TORGERSON asked on page 2, line 15 what they were referring
to with "under supervision of a court or an adm ni strative agency."

MR. ELDER said his Departnment woul d be one of those admi nistrative
agenci es.

SENATOR TORCGERSON asked if there were others.

MR ELDER answered the Federal Deposit |nsurance Corporation (FD O
m ght be.

SENATOR TORGERSON asked what a premi um finance conpany was (page
3).

MR ELDER answered that it is one that finances insurance prem uns.
They have to be licensed in the state to do that.

SENATOR TORGERSON asked if "small | oan conpanies"” excluded pawn
shops.

MR. ELDER answered that small |oan conpani es are defined under the

SENATE L& C COWM TTEE -4- February 20, 2001



Smal | Loans Act which excl udes pawn shops.
Nunber 1150

SENATOR TOGERSON asked how many banks were being regulated in the
st ate.

MR ELDER answered, "Not as nmany as we used to. W have three state
charted commerci al banks, one state charted nmutual savings banks,
two state charted credit wunions, and assorted snall |oan
conpani es. "

CHAI RMAN PHI LLI PS asked if he could nane them

MR. ELDER replied, "First Bank of Ketchikan, North R m Denali
State Bank, the Mount MKinley Mitual, Credit Union One and North
Country Credit Union."

SENATOR TOGERSON sai d he had the sane concerns as Senator Leman in
taking off the 17 percent cap since the legislature had just
required it a couple of years ago. He'd like to see nore discussion
on that at a future tine. He referred to page 9, and said it
appears to himthat the Departnment is holding veto power over the
federal reserve systemif a person put in an application to be a
hol di ng conmpany. He didn't understand that paragraph.

MR ELDER expl ained that, "This paragraph is fairly friendly toward
the financial holding conpanies. W are sinply asking soneone who
is already a bank holding conmpany and who is applying to the
Federal Reserve and the Federal Reserve nakes that determ nation
for designation as a financial holding conpany - thereby getting
all the powers of a financial holding conpany. W're sinply saying
give us a notice. Section 4 allows us 30 days after Federal Reserve
approval to deny it if there's any reason they can see. The only
basis they could have would that it would be a safety and soundness
basis or it be contrary to sonme other provision of state law. M
guess is that in practice it would be very rare that we woul d deny
it."

SENATOR TORGERSON asked if it wasn't a backwards process where the
Federal Reserve acknow edges them and the Departnent has 30 days to
reject that.

MR. ELDER replied that these are state entities and they were not
controlling in any way whether or not a national entity is formed
under the Federal Reserve. They want to nmaintain state control of
state entities.

SENATE L& C COWM TTEE - 5- February 20, 2001



SENATOR TORGERSON said he didn't think it really said that.

SENATOR TORGERSON asked if forecl osure woul d conme under disposition
of property under all investnents regardl ess of how acquired on
page 10, section 15.

MR. ELDER replied that he thought it woul d.

SENATOR TORGERSON said he didn't know why he woul d authorize them
to wite it off if they had a foreclosure.

MR TERRY LUTZ, Supervisor, Banking Section, answered this has been
in the banking code for sonme tine. "W don't want a financial
institution to have a piece of property which they wote off at
$100, 000, they foreclosed on it and got a property worth $100, 000.
It shouldn't be there for 20 years at $100,000. If it's there for
that long, it's clearly not worth $100,000. O it's bank property
that is used for banking business in which case it needs to be
classified differently and purchased by the bank."

SENATOR TORGERSON asked if that was for reporting net worth, so it
can't be inflated by having a bunch of property on their books.

MR, LUTZ answered yes.

SENATOR TORGERSON asked on page 11, line 19 regarding ATMs and the
agreenent with other institutions to pay an equitable amunt for
use of the machine, if banks had exchanges where you don't pay
anyt hi ng.

MR. ELDER responded that they are not changing |anguage from
current law. This sinply is tal king about the machi nes, thensel ves.
They can be placed off prem ses, but they have to be available to
the custoners of other depository institutions. "It would require
an agreenent between the institutions, not the custoners using it."
It doesn't nean that there has to be a charge to the custoner

Number 1500

CHAI RVAN PHILLIPS said that staff had contacted nenbers of the
Bankers Association, the Al aska Mrtgage Bankers, all 14 credit
unions, as well as the departnent on this issue. He said that
Credit Union One had two suggestions and he was really considering
nunber two, section 50, AS 06. 45. 060.

MR. ELDER commented that Credit Union One didn't raise that issue

when he was discussing it with them but is raising it now He
didn't have any particular objection. It tal ks about changing the

SENATE L& C COWM TTEE - 6- February 20, 2001



dollar Iimts of certain loans to directors and certain other
people in authority that have to be reviewed and approved by the
Board of Directors. On page two, they nention that would give them
parity with the federal charter credit unions. He generally agrees
that state banks and state credit unions should be on a I|evel
playing field with federal credit unions and international banks.

SENATOR TORGERSON sai d they deviate fromthe G amm Leach-Bliley Act
under the confidentiality clauses.

MR. ELDER said, "Yes, it is correct, we deviated, though wth
perm ssion of Gamm Leach-Bliley. It specifically allows states to
adopt nore restrictive privacy."

Number 1600

SENATOR TORGERSON asked if there were any other areas where the
state deviates fromthat |aw.

MR. ELDER answered, "Not to nmy know edge."

CHAI RVAN PHI LLI PS asked if this legislation affected internationa
banks.

MR. ELDER answered that nothing in this proposal changes current
requi renents of international banks to get perm ssion to branch
her e.

SENATOR TORGERSON asked if he had any nore neetings scheduled with
t he Banki ng Associ ati on.

MR ELDER answered that he didn't have anything el se schedul ed, but
their door was always open and he had invited them to talk any
tinme.

M5. LI SA BELL, Al aska Bankers Association, said they represent nine
banks across the state which includes both state and federally
chartered institutions. She wanted to focus today on Section 3,
page 2, the confidentiality section. "The proposed |egislation
would nove this provision from its current |ocation under the
Al aska Banki ng Code, which is applicable only to state chartered
institutions, into the adm nistration section where it would apply
to all financial institutions operating within the state. That is a
significant change. | want to point out that the privacy and
confidentiality of custoner information is not a new concept to
banks. Banks already have internal policies and procedures that
deal with safeguarding of custoner information and we believe that
t he bi ggest asset a bank can have is integrity.”

SENATE L& C COWM TTEE -7- February 20, 2001



MS. BELL said that the G amm Leach-Bliley Act's privacy provision
contains inportant new disclosure requirenents and other
requi renents that pertain to the sharing of non-public personal
information with third parties. "The rule is quite conplicated and,
in fact, the FDI C has just published on February 5 guidelines to
assi st banks with conplying before the mandatory date of July 1,
2001." She added that all banks are under intense regulatory
scrutiny as they work on their conpliance and privacy prograns. The
first round of exam nations has already begun. It is a heavily
noni t ored process.

M5. BELL said ABA supports the intent of SB 66, but their
prelimnary review of the confidentiality provisions has discl osed
some i nconsi stenci es between the proposed state statutes and G amm
Leach-Bliley. There are additional restrictions in state statute
whi ch are confusing and not necessarily in the custoners' best
interest. She said that they have been talking with M. Elder and
M. Lutz and they do intend to neet with them again as soon as
their review is finished.

SENATOR TORCGERSON asked when her revi ew woul d be done.

MS. BELL answered in about three weeks.
#

CHAI RMAN PHI LLI PS thanked everyone for their participation and
adj ourned the neeting at 2:10 p. m

SENATE L& C COWM TTEE - 8- February 20, 2001



